
R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 1

1

MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Regular Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, January 21, 
2020, beginning at 7:30 PM in the Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 South 
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.

7:30 PM CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

ITEM #1

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ACTION: Discussion - Consider approval of agenda as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #2

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 7, 2020.
   

ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of minutes as written or amended.

COMMENTS:
 
 

ITEM #3

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-001 RECOGNIZING THE 
TINLEY PARK BULLDOGS CHEERLEADING TEAM ON THEIR 
ACHIEVEMENTS - Clerk Thirion

ACTION: Discussion: The Tinley Park Bulldogs Cheer Recreational Fifth Grade 
Cheerleading Team closed out their season winning placing second at the 2019 
Illinois Recreational Cheer Association State Competition on December 8th. 
This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 2

2

ITEM #4

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-004 RECOGNIZING THE 
KOWALCZYK FAMILY ON WINNING ABC-7 CHICAGO'S 2019 
CHRISTMAS "GREAT CHICAGO LIGHT FIGHT" - President Vandenberg

ACTION: Discussion: This resolution celebrates the Kowalcyzk family, Village residents 
whose home Christmas lights display on Avon Lane was voted the best in the 
Chicagoland area for the 2019 ABC-7 Chicago "Great Chicago Light Fight". 
The Kowalcyzks' display was chosen from six (6) finalists in the Chicagoland 
area and represented the Village nationally. This Resolution is eligible for 
adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #5

SUBJECT: CONSIDER RECEIVING A PRESENTATION FROM PETER DUMON OF 
THE HARP GROUP UPDATING ACTIVITIES AT THE TINLEY PARK 
CONVENTION CENTER AND HOTEL - President Vandenberg

ACTION: Discussion: Peter Dumon will present an update of the activities at the Tinley 
Park Convention Center and Hotel. No specific action required.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #6

SUBJECT: CONSIDER RECEIVING A PRESENTATION OF A TECHNICAL 
INNOVATION AWARD FROM THE SOUTHWEST BRANCH OF THE 
AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS ASSOCIATION (APWA) FOR THE NORTH 
STREET RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT - Trustee Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: The Southwest Branch of the American Public Works Association 
(APWA) recently presented the Village with a Technical Innovation award for 
its North Street Reconstruction Project. The APWA cited the project’s use of 
permeable interlocking paver stones as a major factor in its decision to select 
North Street as the award recipient. The interlocking paver stones help to 
capture almost 60,000 gallons of water at the front-end of any storm, which 
prevents runoff within the North Street right of way. This $1.3 million project 
was completed in 2019 and was funded in part by a $200,000 Green 
Infrastructure Grant from the Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of 
Greater Chicago. Work included reconstruction and beautification, including 
new paver stones and crosswalks that resemble piano keys. In addition to Public 
Works Director Kevin Workowski and his team, the North Street Project 
included Robinson Engineering, Austin-Tyler Construction and LPS Pavement 
Company.  No specific action is required.



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 3

3

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #7

SUBJECT: CONSIDER THE APPOINTMENT OF ANDREW BROWN TO THE 
POSITON OF ASSISTANT FINANCE DIRECTOR/ASSISTANT 
TREASURER - Trustee Galante

ACTION: Discussion: The Village recently conducted recruitment for the position of 
Assistant Finance Director/Assistant Treasurer. Twelve applications were 
received and quickly shortlisted to three candidates. Two candidates were 
requested to participate in a second interview with our panel, and Andrew 
Brown was identified as the most qualified to fill this vacancy. Mr. Brown 
earned a Bachelor of Business Administration from Western Michigan 
University and a Master of Professional Accountancy from Elmhurst College.  
He previously served the town of Cicero as Senior Accountant and most 
recently the Village of Buffalo Grove as Deputy Director of Finance, where he 
has direct involvement in community and economic development, as well as 
government finance. Mr. Brown has served on the Illinois Government Finance 
Officers Association (IGFOA) Executive Board, Continuing Professional 
Education Committee and as Chair of the Growth and Engagement network.  In 
his free time, he is the Head Coach for the Orland Park Vikings Hockey Club 
and Park Ridge Express Hockey Club. Consider the appointment of Andrew 
Brown to the position of Assistant Finance Director / Treasurer, effective 
January 22, 2020.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #8

SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING CONSENT 
AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM THE KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS TO 
CONDUCT A TAG DAY FUNDRAISER ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 
18, AND SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2020, AT CERTAIN 
INTERSECTIONS IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

B. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM PARK LAWN TO CONDUCT A TAG 
DAY FUNDRAISER ON FRIDAY AND SATURDAY APRIL 10 AND 
11 AND FRIDAY, APRIL 17, 2020, AT CERTAIN INTERSECTIONS 
IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK





R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 5

5

ITEM #10

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-O-006 APPROVING AND 
ACCEPTING A FINAL PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION FOR SOUTHLANDS 
FIRST CONSOLIDATION LOCATED AT 17100-17110 HARLEM AVENUE 
- Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner, Vequity LLC (contract purchaser/developer), has 
requested Final Plat approval for the Southlands First Consolidation associated 
with the proposed 7-Eleven gas station and convenience store at 17100 and 
17110 Harlem Avenue. The Plat will consolidate two (2) parcels along Harlem 
Ave resulting in a single .961-acre parcel. The Plat also includes all existing 
utility easements, cross-access easements to neighboring properties, and a 
sidewalk easement for installation of a public sidewalk on a portion of the 
property.

The Plan Commission reviewed the Final Plat of Resubdivision with a 
recommended condition that the approval is subject to Final Engineering Plan 
approval by the Village Engineer on January 2, 2020, and voted 5-0 to 
recommend approval. This Resolution is eligible for first reading.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #11

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-O-004 GRANTING A SPECIAL 
USE FOR AN AUTOMOBILE SERVICE (GAS) STATION TO PERMIT THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 7-ELEVEN GAS STATION AT 17100 HARLEM 
AVENUE IN THE B-1 (NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING) ZONING DISTRICT 
- Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner, Vequity LLC, is seeking a Special Use Permit for an 
automobile service (gas) at 17100 Harlem Avenue in the B-1 (Neighborhood 
Shopping) Zoning District. The proposed gas station site includes ten (10) 
vehicle fueling stations and a 3,511 sq. ft. convenience store building.

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on January 2, 2020, and voted 5-0 
to recommend approval of the Special Use with recommended conditions in 
accordance with the plans as listed in the “Listed Reviewed Plans” and Findings 
of Fact in the January 2, 2020, Staff Report. This Ordinance is eligible for first 
reading.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 6

6

ITEM #12

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-O-005 GRANTING 
VARIATIONS FROM THE ZONING ORDINANCE RELATED TO THE 
LOT SIZE, LOT WIDTH, LOT DEPTH, DRIVE AISLE WIDTH AND 
FREESTANDING SIGN SETBACK FOR THE PROPOSED 7-ELEVEN GAS 
STATION AND CONVENIENCE STORE SITE LOCATED AT 17100 
HARLEM AVENUE IN THE B-1 (NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING) ZONING 
DISTRICT - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner, Vequity LLC (contract purchaser/developer), is 
seeking the five (5) variations related to lot size, lot width, lot depth, drive aisle 
width and freestanding sign setback as part of their proposal to redevelop the 
properties at 17100 and 17110 Harlem Avenue for a 7-Eleven gas station site 
that includes ten (10) vehicle fueling stations and a 3,511 sq. ft. convenience 
store building.

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on January 2, 2020 and voted 5-0 
to recommend approval of the five Variations and adopt the Findings of Fact in 
accordance with the plans as listed in the “Listed Reviewed Plans” as indicated 
in the January 2, 2020 Staff Report. This Ordinance is eligible for first 
reading.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 

ITEM #13

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-005 AUTHORIZING A 
CONTRACT WITH AQUAMIST PLUMBING AND LAWN SPRINKLING, 
CO. FOR IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE - Trustee Glotz

ACTION: Discussion: The proposed irrigation contract entails winterization, spring start 
up and repairs to the system at seven (7) locations (LaGrange Road, Harlem 
Avenue, 171st Street median, Fire Station #4 at 191st Street, Oak Park Avenue 
Metra Station, Village Hall, and the Police Station.) This Resolution is eligible 
for adoption.

COMMENTS:                     
 
 



R e g u l a r  V i l l a g e  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  A g e n d a - J a n u a r y  2 1 ,  2 0 2 0  | 7

7

ITEM #14

SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM STAFF -

COMMENTS:                     
 

ITEM #15

SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD -

COMMENTS:                     
 

ITEM #16

SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -

COMMENTS:                     
 

ITEM #17

SUBJECT: ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS: 

A. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, 
DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC 
EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL FOR 
THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A 
COMPLAINT LODGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC 
BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY 
TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY. 

B. COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATING MATTERS BETWEEN THE PUBLIC 
BODY AND ITS EMPLOYEES OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVES, OR 
DELIBERATIONS CONCERNING SALARY SCHEDULES FOR ONE 
OR MORE CLASSES OF EMPLOYEES.

C. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON 
BEHALF OF THE PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED 
AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR ADMINISTRATIVE 
TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN 
ACTION IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE 
BASIS FOR THE FINDINGS SHALL BE RECORDED AND ENTERED 
INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

ADJOURNMENT



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                               January 7, 2020 1

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES,
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,

ILLINOIS, HELD JANUARY 7, 2020
The Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the 
Council Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue, Tinley 
Park, IL on January 7, 2020.   President Vandenberg called this meeting to order at 7:53 p.m. and led 
the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
At this time President Vandenberg as for a moment of silence for U.S. Army Specialist Henry 
Mayfield Jr., of Hazel Crest, Illinois, was among three (3) Americans killed in an early morning 
attack January 5, 2020, in Kenya after their military base was overrun by al-Shabab fighters.

Clerk Thirion asked all present to keep U.S. Military personnel serving in Iraq in our thoughts. 

Present and responding to roll call were the following:

Village President:      Jacob C. Vandenberg
Village Clerk: Kristin A. Thirion

                         Trustees: William P. Brady
William A. Brennan
Diane M. Galante
Michael W. Glotz
Michael G. Mueller

Absent: Cynthia A. Berg

Also Present: 
Village Manager: David Niemeyer
Asst. Village Manager: Patrick Carr
Village Attorney: Patrick Connelly 

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to approve the agenda as 
written or amended for this meeting. Vote by voice call.  President Vandenberg declared the motion 
carried. 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to approve and place on file the 
minutes of the Special Village Board Meeting held on December 17, 2019. Vote by voice call. 
President Vandenberg declared the motion carried. 

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to consider approving the 
following Consent Agenda items:

The following Consent Agenda items were read by the Village Clerk:

A. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM AMERICAN LEGION POST 615, 17423 67TH COURT, 
TO CONDUCT A QUEEN OF HEARTS RAFFLE THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020, OR 
UNTIL A WINNER IS DRAWN, WITH THE MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE NOT 

Page | 8AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                               January 7, 2020 2

TO EXCEED $250,000.  WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN WEEKLY AT THE AMERICAN 
LEGION POST.

B. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$1,879,333.96 AS LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED 
DECEMBER 20, DECEMBER 27, 2019, AND JANUARY 3, 2020. 

President Vandenberg asked if anyone from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items 
from the Consent Agenda. No items were removed or discussed. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, 
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Berg.  President Vandenberg declared the 
motion carried. 
Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to postpone ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2019-O-052 GRANTING CERTAIN VARIATIONS TO PERMIT THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A ONE-STORY BUILDING ADDITION ON THE PARK OAKS 
BUILDING AT 17322 OAK PARK AVENUE (JAMES VROEGH). Village Attorney O’Grady 
stated that he will be reviewing this item with Staff and bring it back before the Village Board at the 
February 4, 2020, Village Board meeting. Vote by voice call.  President Vandenberg declared the 
motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to ADOPT ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 2019-O-081 APPROVING TEXT AMENDMENTS TO VARIOUS CODE SECTIONS 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, SUBDIVISION CODE, AND ZONING ORDINANCE TO 
IMPLEMENT FEE CHANGES AND CREATE A COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE. The 
proposed fee changes will predominately affect commercial and new development projects. The fee levels 
were chosen to help protect the general fund from any “hard” or “up-front” costs, while also ensuring Tinley 
Park remains a competitive and attractive community for developers and businesses to operate. The new 
comprehensive fee schedule will allow all fees to be located in one place and help increase future customer 
and staff clarity. The comprehensive fee schedule will be located in the Code of Ordinances, Table of Special 
Ordinances, Table XI. The fee increases are proposed to become effective on March 1, 2020 to allow time for 
implementation; they will not apply to projects that have applied prior to that date.

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on August 15, 2019, related to the Zoning Ordinance changes 
and unanimously recommended approval of the proposed text amendments. The Committee of the Whole 
reviewed all fee changes on October 1, 2019 and directed staff to draft the appropriate text amendments. 
President Vandenberg stated that this item was in its final adoption stage and asked if anyone cared to 
address the Board.  No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, 
Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Berg.  President Vandenberg declared the motion carried. 

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to ADOPT ORDINANCE 2020-O-001 
AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO ORDINANCE 70-O-002 TO PROVIDE NEW EMPLOYEES 
WITH A SPECIFIED AMOUNT OF SICK TIME. This Ordinance amends the Village’s current Sick 
and Disability Ordinance (70-O-002) to provide new employees with a specified amount of sick time. As 
Human Resources amends the Personnel Manual, this was a policy identified for revision. The current 
policy allows staff to use sick time as earned based on years of service, ranging from (2) weeks to (52) 
weeks of full compensation. The amended policy will only impact eligible, new hires beginning January 1, 
2020, and allows those employees to use up to 80 hours (10 days) per anniversary year. Time does not 
accrue and does not bank or carry over. This item was discussed at Administration and Legal Committee 
on September 9, 2019, and Committee of the Whole on December 3, 2019.  President Vandenberg stated 
that this item was in its final adoption stage and asked if anyone cared to address the Board.  No one came 

Page | 9AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                               January 7, 2020 3

forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Berg.  
President Vandenberg declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Glotz, to ADOPT ORDINANCE 2020-O-
002 AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE VILLAGE PERSONNEL MANUAL. This 
action amends four existing policies contained within the Personnel Manual including: 

1) Holidays: Continue to recognize 11 holidays. However, beginning January 1, 2020, 
change Good Friday to a half-day holiday and make Christmas Eve a full day holiday. 
Impacts current, eligible staff.

2) Tuition Reimbursement: Continue practice which requires approval by Department Head 
& Village Manager. However, for classes beginning after January 1, 2020 (that have not 
already been approved by the Village Manager), the Village will reimburse 80% for 
coursework completed and receiving a grade equivalent to an ‘A’; 70% for ‘B’; 50% for 
‘C’. Individuals must remain employed for two (2) years or employee reimburses the 
Village 100%. Impacts current, eligible staff, that have had already received an approval 
tuition reimbursement plan. 

3) Vacation: Only impacting eligible, new hires prior to or beginning January 1, 2020, as 
directed, the schedule would be as follows. Borrow in advance request is eliminated. 
Employee can accumulate time on a prorated basis.
a. Executive Level Management: 20 days for 1-14 years of service; 25 days for 15+ 

years of service
b. Civil Service and full-time Appointed staff: 10 days for 1-6 years of service; 15 

days for 7-10 years of service; 20 days for 11-14 years of service; 25 days for 15+ 
years of service

4) Sick and Disability: Only impacting eligible, new hires beginning January 1, 2020,  allow 
to use up to 80 hours (10 days) per anniversary year. Time does not accrue and does not 
bank or carry over. 

This item was discussed at Committee of the Whole on December 3, 2019. President Vandenberg 
stated that this item was in its final adoption stage and asked if anyone cared to address the 
Board.  No one came forward. Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  
Nays: None.  Absent:  Berg.  President Vandenberg declared the motion carried.

At this time, President Vandenberg asked if anyone from the Staff would care to address the Board. No one 
came forward.

Village Manager Niemeyer stated that a Committee of the Whole meeting will take place on Tuesday, 
January 14, 2019 to present the first draft of the strategic plan to the Village Board.  Village Board 
priorities for the 2021 Fiscal Year Budget will also be discussed at this Committee of the Whole meeting. 

Fire Chief Forest Reeder presented an update on a structure fire at the 9300 block of Pleasant Avenue.  
Chief Reeder acknowledged the hard work of the firefighters at the incident and thanked the community, 
elected officials, and staff for their support. Two (2) firefighters received minor injuries, were treated and 
released, and returned to their regular duties. President Vandenberg noted that he spoke to the firefighters 
and they stated that their training was what assisted them in the process. President Vandenberg 
congratulated the Fire Chief and his staff for all their efforts now and in the future.

Page | 10AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                               January 7, 2020 4

At this time, President Vandenberg asked if anyone from the Board would care to address the Board. No 
one came forward.

Trustee Glotz presented an update on ethics complaints. He thanked the attorneys at Peterson, Johnson, and 
Murray for amending the language of the Village Ethics Code.  He noted that the Village has spent over 
$37,000 in the past two (2) years on seven (7) unfounded ethics complaints. Six (6) of these complaints 
were filed by one (1) person.  He also presented an update on lawsuits received by the Village. He noted 
that in the past two (2) years attorneys from Peterson, Johnson, and Murray, and the Intergovernmental 
Risk Management Agency (IRMA) have done an outstanding job of successfully defending these lawsuits, 
most of these lawsuits have been dismissed. He noted that there are still a couple of lawsuits outstanding. 

Trustee Brady stated that he would like to ask staff to draft a proclamation recognizing the Kowalczyk 
Family of Tinley Park for winning the Great Chicago Light Fight.  President Vandenberg asked Trustee 
Brady to work with Dominic Sanfilippo on a proclamation for this family.

Trustee Galante asked that the Marketing Department be made aware of these type of events as they come 
up, in order to communicate this the Village Board and residents 

Village President Vandenberg stated that his Executive Assistant, Dominic Sanfilippo, will be leaving his 
position at the Village and moving on to teach high school. President Vandenberg thanked Mr. Sanfilippo 
for his hard work. 

At this time, President Vandenberg asked if anyone from the Public would care to address the Board. No 
one came forward.

A citizen stated his concerns about amendments adopted by the Village Board to the Ethics Code that were 
at the December 3, 2019, Village Board meeting. He feels citizens have lost a tool in ensuring officials act 
honestly and with integrity. 

A citizen stated her concerns about public comment procedures and the cost to Tinley Park citizens of 
Freedom of Information Act requests, lawsuits, and ethics complaints.  She commended the Village Board 
for amending the ethics code. 

A citizen asked for an update of the Magnuson project. Community Development Director Kimberly 
Clarke stated that the developer has picked up his foundation-only permit and intends engage his 
contractors this week, weather permitting. The citizen stated concerns about when the sewer lines would be 
put in and where the water runoff would go to without sewer lines. Ms. Clarke stated that the citizen could 
speak with the Village Engineer regarding this development. Trustee Galante stated concerns about 
foundation only policies and would like to see a timeline for this development. 

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, at 8:31 p.m. to adjourn to Executive 
Session to discuss the following: 

A. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON BEHALF OF THE 
PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR 
ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN ACTION 
IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL 
BE RECORDED AND ENTERED INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

Page | 11AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees – Minutes                               January 7, 2020 5

B. THE APPOINTMENT, EMPLOYMENT, COMPENSATION, DISCIPLINE, PERFORMANCE, 
OR DISMISSAL OF SPECIFIC EMPLOYEES OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR LEGAL COUNSEL 
FOR THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING HEARING TESTIMONY ON A COMPLAINT 
LODGED AGAINST AN EMPLOYEE OF THE PUBLIC BODY OR AGAINST LEGAL 
COUNSEL FOR THE PUBLIC BODY TO DETERMINE ITS VALIDITY.

C. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, 
INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A 
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

D. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR LEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE 
PUBLIC BODY.

Vote on roll call:  Ayes:  Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller.  Nays: None.  Absent:  Berg.  
President Vandenberg declared the motion carried. 

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adjourn the Executive Session 
and reconvene the special Board meeting. Vote by voice call. President Vandenberg declared the 
motion carried and reconvened the special Board meeting at 9:56 p.m.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Mueller, to adjourn the special Board meeting.  
Vote by voice call.  President Vandenberg declared the motion carried and adjourned the special Board 
meeting at 9:56 p.m.

PLEASE NOTE: Where there is no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that 
no discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item.

APPROVED:

_____________________________________
                     Village President 

ATTEST:

_____________________________________
            Village Clerk

Page | 12AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

Tinley park 

 

 
resoluTion 2020-r-001 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE  

TINLEY PARK BULLDOGS CHEERLEADING TEAM ON THEIR ACHIEVEMENTS. 
 

WHereas, the Fifth Grade Competition Team finished their spectacular year closing the season winning second 

place at the 2019 Illinois Recreational Cheer Association State Competition on December 8; and 

noW, THereFore, be iT resolved, by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, 

Cook and Will Counties, Illinois that January 21, 2020, be designated Tinley Park Bulldog Cheerleading day in the 

Village of Tinley Park, in recognition of the Cheer Recreational Division C Fifth Grade (CREC5) Bulldog Cheerleading 

Team and urge all citizens to join together and congratulate this Bulldog Cheerleading Team on their achievements. 

be iT FurTHer resolved, that the following CREC5 Bulldog Cheerleading Team members be recognized: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADOPTING THIS 21st DAY OF JANUARY, 2020. 
 

____________________________________ 
Jacob C. Vandenberg, Village President 

 
 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
Kristin A. Thirion, Village Clerk 

 
__________________________________     _______________________________ 
     Trustee Cynthia A. Berg       Trustee William P. Brady 
 
__________________________________     _______________________________ 
  Trustee William A. Brennan       Trustee Diane M. Galante 
 

 

__________________________________     _______________________________ 
     Trustee Michael W. Glotz     Trustee Michael G. Mueller 

CREC5 Cheerleading Team 
 

Kim Allison 
Leah Bartgen 

Gianna Cozzolino 
Gigi Creegan 
Hope Fazekas 
Grace Garrity 
Nicole Gluch 

Gianna Goodwin 
Abby Harris 

Maddie Jurgens 
Ellie Martino 

Samantha Muys 
Brooklyn O'Reilly 

Eleanor Poncin 
Malia Randle 

Nora Ryan 
Lyla Stewart 

Katie Bartgen, Coach 
Carrie Fazekas, Coach 
Lindsey Beck, Coach 

Erin Stewart, Cheer Director 
Linsay Creegan, Asst. Cheer Director 

Page | 13AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

































CONSIDER THE 
APPOINTMENT OF 

ANDREW BROWN TO THE 
POSITON OF ASSISTANT 

FINANCE 
DIRECTOR/ASSISTANT 

TREASURER
Trustee Galante

Page | 17AGENDA - 1/21/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Fr. C.C. Boyle Council 4698 Tinley Park, IL 60477

St George
St. Julle
St. Stephen
St Emeric
St. Ellzabeth Seton
St. Gerard Majella
St. Damian

January 7, 2020

Village Clerk
Village of Tinley Park
16200 S. Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477

Dear Village Clerk

The annual Tootsie Roll Drivefor the Intellectually disabled will be on Friday and Saturday, September
18 & 19 of2020. This is a noteworthy cause benefiting the specialpopulation in our community. We
are therefore, askingfor your permission in this endeavor by allowing the Knights of Columbus
volunteers to stand on the street corners in your cityfor the solicitation offundsfor these specialpeople.
Please acknowledge your agreement by returning a signed copy of this letter. On behalf of the Knights
of Columbus and our special needs population we say THANK YOU.

Respectfully

Joseph Siuda

Approved

Serving the parishes of:

By
Date

Page | 18AGENDA - 1/21/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Administrative Office

PAARK
Business Office
10833S. LaPorte
Oak Lawn, IL 60453
Phone: (708) 425-3344
Fax: (708) 425-3530

LAWN

January, 2020

Ms. Diane Melone
Village ofTinley Park
16250 Oak Park Ave
Tinley Park, IL 60477

Dear Ms. Melone:

As you know, Park Lawn is a non-profit agency that provides programs for individuals with intellectual and developmental
disabilities. Our facilities are throughout the South Suburbs of Chicago and include an adult training center, workshop, supporte
employment, residential centers and community living. Although our facilities are local, Park Lawn’s outreach is beyond the
Southwest Suburbs, assisting families locally and throughout Illinois.

Park Lawn is gearing up for its annual Tag and Candy Day Fundraiser: This major event is scheduled for Friday & Saturday,
April 10th, 11th and 17th , and 18th 2020. Community volunteers will be soliciting for donations on street corners from 6:00 a.n
until 8:00 p.m. or dusk. We provide them with a bright orange safety vest with Park Lawn’s logo, a bucket with Park Lawn’s lo
and a tag with information about Park Lawn.

We are asking for your permission to solicit donations for Park Lawn. Please fax the signed form to me at 708-229-9325 or sc
and email it to mdynia(parklawn.com. If faxing is not available, please call me at (708) 425-6867 or mail it to Park Lawn,
10833 5. LaPorte Ave. Oak Lawn, IL 60453.

Once again, thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,

Afa,’t l2jz

Mark Dynia
Marketing Manager

Please check the most appropriate date for your schedule. Permission is granted to Park Lawn to tag within the <<COMPANY>> a
the following dates:

April10 April11 April 17 April 18

Authorized Signature:

________________________________________

Date:

________________________

Name in Print: Title:

Page | 19AGENDA - 1/21/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 20AGENDA - 1/21/2020, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 21AGENDA - 1/21/2020, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 22AGENDA - 1/21/2020, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 23AGENDA - 1/21/2020, C -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Dr. Kristine L. Roth
Assistant Superintendent

ofCurriculum and Instruction

Michael L. Andreshak
Director of

Business Services/CSBO KIRBY SCHOOL DISTRICT 140
Dr. Shawn M. Olson

Superintendent

Mary T. Dwyer
Director of

Special Services

Brian E. Nemeth
Director of
Technology

January 8, 2020

Mr. Brad L. Bettenhausen, Treasurer
Village of Tinley Park
16250 Oak Park Avenue
Tinley Park, IL 60477

Dear Mr. Bettenhausen:

We are aware of the limited construction activities that generate impact fees. However,
periodically we will request payout of impact fees collected on behalf of the School District. Our
last request was in July 2019.

Thank you for your attention regarding this matter.

Sincerely,

Michael L. Andreshak
Director of Business Services

MLA:tm

tv

S

Page | 24AGENDA - 1/21/2020, D -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



 

 
 
 
Date:  January 21, 2020  
 
To:   Mayor and Board of Trustees 
   Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager 
 
From:  Kimberly Clarke, AICP 
  Community Development Director 
 
Subject:   Release of Letter of Credit (Union Square Subdivision) 

 
 
In August of 2019, the Village adopted a Foundation Only Permit Policy per Resolution No. 2019-
R-079, which outlined when such permit may be considered. A condition of that approval is a letter 
of credit is required for the removal of all foundations in the event the developer does not 
complete the project.  
 
Union Square Subdivision is the first development to fall under the new foundation only policy. 
The foundation work has been completed and the Village Engineer and Building department have 
approved the work and therefore the attached letter of credit may be released in its entirety. 

Interoffice   

Memo 

Page | 25AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois 
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2020-R-002

A RESOLUTION RELEASING THE LETTER OF CREDIT ISSUED IN 
RELATION TO 179 OPA, LLC’S FOUNDATION ONLY PERMIT FOR UNION 

SQUARE TOWNHOMES DEVELOPMENT

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY

WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ

MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys

200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606
 

Page | 26AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-002

A RESOLUTION RELEASING THE LETTER OF CREDIT ISSUED IN 
RELATION TO 179 OPA, LLC’S FOUNDATION ONLY PERMIT FOR UNION 

SQUARE TOWNHOMES DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois 
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit, 
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of 
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article 
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, 
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park (“Village”) has previously granted Kevin Halleran 
& Mike Halleran, on behalf of 179 OPA, LLC (“179 OPA”) a foundation only permit (“FOP”) in 
relation to 179 OPA’s development of the Union Square Town Homes; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the issuance of the FOP, 179 OPA was required to submit a letter 
of credit (“LOC”) for public improvements and removal of the foundation in the instance that the 
development of Union Square Town Homes was not completed; and 

WHEREAS, 179 OPA has completed the foundation as described in their FOP and the 
Village now desires to release the LOC provided by 179 OPA; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will 
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and 
its residents to release said LOC submitted by 179 OPA; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, 
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if 
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park, hereby 
approve and release said LOC submitted by 179 OPA, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions provided in the FOP issued to 179 OPA, subject to review and revision 
as to form by the Village Attorney and Village staff. 

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions 
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Page | 27AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



SECTION 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and 
approval. 

SECTION 5: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in 
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

PASSED THIS 21st day of January, 2020.

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED THIS 21st day of January, 2020.

____________________________________
               VILLAGE PRESIDENT

ATTEST:
__________________________________
                VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 28AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook and 

Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of 

Resolution No. 2020-R-002, “A RESOLUTION RELEASING THE LETTER OF CREDIT 

ISSUED IN RELATION TO 179 OPA, LLC’S FOUNDATION ONLY PERMIT FOR UNION 

SQUARE TOWNHOMES DEVELOPMENT,” which was adopted by the President and Board of 

Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on January 21, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of 

the Village of Tinley Park this 21st day of January, 2020.

____________________________________
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

Page | 29AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 30AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...



Page | 31AGENDA - 1/21/2020, E -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...





























































































































































































































AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7





AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'



AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERSHADE BY MAPES ARCHITECTURAL CANOPIES OR APPROVED EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' PROJECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARK BROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL PACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR ANODIZED STOREFRONT WITH 1" INSULATED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARK BRONW ANODIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEALSKIN SW7675

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL DOORS  AND FRAME 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWIN WILLIAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR LED WALL PACK # EWLS01_15AF750EWLS01_15AF750

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARBOURTOWN BRICK BY HEBRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 5/8"X2 1/4"X7 5/8"-SMOOTH FACE & MONOTONE PALLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARBOURTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLOMON COLORS: GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BMI OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
950 TYPE S /W WATER REPELLENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK (BR-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL JOINT  SEALANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 790

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: DARK BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAC-CLAD PETERSEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NICHIHA ROUGH SAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESPRESSO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER CEMENT PANEL (N-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL JOINT  SEALANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 790

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: DARK BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAC-CLAD PETERSEN



AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUPERSHADE BY MAPES ARCHITECTURAL CANOPIES OR APPROVED EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' PROJECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARK BROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL PACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR ANODIZED STOREFRONT WITH 1" INSULATED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARK BRONW ANODIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEALSKIN SW7675

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL DOORS  AND FRAME 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWIN WILLIAMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTERIOR LED WALL PACK # EWLS01_15AF750EWLS01_15AF750

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARBOURTOWN BRICK BY HEBRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 5/8"X2 1/4"X7 5/8"-SMOOTH FACE & MONOTONE PALLETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARBOURTOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLOMON COLORS: GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BMI OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
950 TYPE S /W WATER REPELLENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK (BR-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: GRAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL JOINT  SEALANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 790

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: DARK BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAC-CLAD PETERSEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NICHIHA ROUGH SAWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESPRESSO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER CEMENT PANEL (N-1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL JOINT  SEALANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOW CORNING 790

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR: DARK BRONZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAC-CLAD PETERSEN



AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: CANOPY UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT





AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PHOTOMETRIC PLAN WAS DEVELOPED BY GE COMPANY.



AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PHOTOMETRIC PLAN WAS  DEVELOPED BY GE COMPANY.


































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	Agenda Page 7
	ITEM #2 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM #3 - Clerk Thirion
	ITEM #4 - President Vandenberg
	ITEM #5 - President Vandenberg
	ITEM #6 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #7 - Trusee Galante
	Item #8 - Consent A
	Item #8 - Consent B
	Item #8 - Consent C
	Item #8 - Consent D
	Item #8 - Consent E
	Item #8 - Consent F
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #13 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #14 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #15 - Board Comment
	ITEM #16 - Public Comment
	Executive Session

